253

MINUTES
CRISP COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
MEETING

ma"!h 2024
@ “\O-‘f/\'\ [

The Crisp County Zoning Board of Appeals met at a regular meeting on the 19" day of March 2024 at
9:00 a.m. in the Crisp County Government Center. The following members were present: J.C. Clark,
Lucky Taylor, and Ken Partain. Also present, Crisp County Planning Director, Mickey Dunnavant and
Building Inspector Jimmy Mumphery.

Visitors present: Thomas McPherson, Chase Lamb, Leigh Lamb, and David Kicker.

Vice Chairman Lucky Taylor called the meeting to order.

MINUTES

Vice Chairman Lucky Taylor asked for a motion on the February 20" 2024 meeting. Vice Chairman
Taylor asked for a motion on the February 20" 2024 minutes.

VOTE: JC Clark so moved that we approve the minutes with a second by Ken Partain to approve the
minutes of the February 20", 2024 meeting minutes. Carried unanimously.

Vice Chairman Taylor opened the Public Hearing and read aloud the criteria in which the board handles
requests.

PUBLIC HEARING

A request from Thomas McPherson, for a variance to allow him to place a storage building in his front
yard at 153 Landing Rd, Cordele Georgia.

MEETING

Mr. McPherson was present and spoke on behalf of the request. McPherson stated that he bought a storage
building and placed it in his front yard. If you are looking at his house it is placed to the right of his
driveway because on the other side is his septic tank and in his back yard is the septic pump. Taylor
commented since the building is already there this is an after the fact thing for him.

McPherson said that when he bought his house out there, he bought it from a realtor who never told him
there was any restrictions for those sorts of things out there. JC Clark asked McPherson that when he
decided to the put his building out there did, he check with his neighbors to see if placing his building was
going to cause a ruckus or something. McPherson said he did not. McPherson said that he did not realize
he needed to do that; but he did have the building built by a professional. It was built to match his house
and he has had several neighbors comment on how nice it looks. Clark responded that he did not have a
problem with it looking nice he just had a problem with it being in the front yard. Clark said it looked like
an eye sore to him, he does not live out there but his home is the only home that has a building sitting in
the front yard. Clark said he understood that he had certain criteria from letting him put it in the back yard



254

Page2
ZBOA Minutes
March 19t 2024

but he would see how the board votes. McPherson verbalized acknowledgment.

Taylor while looking at pictures asked if he had of put it on the left side of his house, McPherson said it
would have been on his septic tank. McPherson said that his septic tank is in the back yard where his
fence is and his septic pump is in the front yard. Taylor asked if the building could have been placed on
the left side of the house on the front edge of the house. McPherson said no. Taylor asked why and
McPherson said that he would have had to take his whole fence down. Clark asked McPherson about a
building that could be seen in the photos. McPherson said that it was a bird house. Clark asked why it
could not have been put there. McPherson said that he would have had to cut a bunch of oak trees. Clark
said he had one more question; was the house already built when you bought or did you have it built.

No other comments from the board for Mr, McPherson. Vice Chairman Taylor asked if anyone else had
any comments or wanted to make any comments.

Dave Kicker approached the podium and said that he lives at 147 Landing Rd. Mr. Kicker said that he
had a feeling that Mr. McPherson was not aware of the restrictive covenants for the neighborhood and that
his realtor should have given him the covenants at closing. Mr. Kicker said that he had no opposition to
the storage building per se, the building is a great looking building and is within the aesthetic of the house.
His opposition is where it is placed. Mr. Kicker pointed out in the covenants, item #2 no construction
within 10ft of the side lot lines or 35 ft of the road or within 20ft of the back lot line. That’s item number
one. Item number six in the restrictive covenants, indicate that plans for any house or other structure to
be built on the land must be submitted to be approved by Harold L. Carter Sr. and Roy P Hall Jr. whose
now deceased. Their successors are assigned prior to commencing construction. Whiles it’s a pre
constructed building. I believe the intentions are clear there is suppose to be some type of pre-approval
prior to any structure built or placed. Mr. Kicker said that he did not have an issue with the building itself.
Mr. Kicker is asking that the building be placed elsewhere. He understands that there’s a hardship on Mr.
McPherson.

Kicker said that he did not know what pictures the board had but if you look at the left side of the house,
the fence kind of juts in and back towards the back of the property line. There are trees there and he is
not sure of how close that encroaches to the sideline, but he would be in favor of it even being there. Mr.
Kicker said that he is going to see it everyday regardless of where its placed. He said he did not care about
that part because the building does look good. Its within the aesthetic of the house and he just thinks given
the neighborhood and kind of, we don’t have an HOA there so we have to go by the restrictive covenants.

Taylor asked Kicker about the setbacks. Mr. Taylor said that he did not see it being in those setbacks.
Kicker said that he did not measure it but it looked close. Taylor asked Kicker if he had any other
comments... Mr. Kicker stated no. Mr. Kicker was thanked for his comments. Kicker stated that he had
a copy of the restrictive covenants if one was needed. Dunnavant reminded the board that Planning &
Zoning nor the board enforces covenants. Those are enforced by the surrounding property owners through
civil court. Dunnavant told the board that in past experiences, often times covenants are not renewed once
they expire. They usually run for 10 to twenty years and expire. Kicker did not know if the covenants
had been renewed. Mr. Kicker was not familiar with any dates for the covenants but did nave a book and



255

Page 3
ZBOA Minutes
March 19t 2024

page number for them. Mr. Mumphery spoke up and said they typically run for twenty years and then
have to be renewed. They are not something that the board enforces, they are only for the community.

Taylor asked for any other comments. Leigh Lamb approached the podium, she lives at 127 Landing Rd.
Mrs. Lamb stated they purchased their home October 2018, Hurricane Michael hit and delayed them from
moving in till December 2018. Mrs. Lamb said that she is very familiar with the covenants as they are
the ones who bought Roy Halls home from Mr. Driver. Lamb said that she id not have a problem with
the building. She said that McPhersons have done a wonderful job with their home and are completely
redoing it. it looks fantastic. She said that she did not have a problem with the building but all of the
buildings in the neighborhood are to the side and to the back of the homes. Lamb said that if they were
going to enforce something that was written twenty years ago, because her home was built in 2000. They
need to enforce all of those things in the covenant as far as keeping the grass cut, all of the doors being
painted, yards being landscaped, etc. No one does that. She stated that she was guilty herself of not doing
that because her flower beds needed to be done. She said that she believes there are four foundation
buildings there and if they are going to judge one person’s building, they all need to be judge. JC Clark
asked what she was referring to as building. Lamb responded with pool houses, storage buildings, shops,
she’s fine with the building but just move it within, if the covenants are still good, move it within the
regulations. But if they are going to sit there and say his buildings not up to standards, there’s a lot of
them now that are not up to standard.

Clark told Lamb that the board has not said anything about standards and as Mickey has stated we do not
enforce the covenant laws of any community, we only deal with the zoning laws. Taylor responded that
we are working on an exception to the zoning law, that’s our whole purpose of todays meeting. Taylor
asked Lamb for her recommendation of what the board should do? Lamb said that it was a loaded
question. Lamb said that she has a movable camper sitting in her front yard right now, neighbors keep
their boats in their driveway. Lamb asked what is considered an eye sore. Taylor said just so everybody
knows, this is not the first property in that neighborhood that has come before the board and we’ve had to
make an exception or deny it.

Mr. Kicker asked the board who enforces the covenants that are in neighborhoods. Mr. Clark responded
the neighborhood. Mr. Kicker said there is no HOA so who would enforce the covenants. Who enforces
something when you do not have an enforcer?

Partain asked if he understood correctly that McPherson was not advised of there being covenants. Kicker
responded that he indicated that he did not get them but it is supposed to happen when close on the
property. Kicker stated that his attorney gave him a copy of the covenants when he closed on his property.
Mrs. Lamb spoke up and said that mortgage or no mortgage once you get the property you are given
covenants.

Dunnavant explained that may be the problem here, the covenants may be expired and not renewed. He
explained that some construction occurred in another neighborhood that had restrictive covenants against
the construction. The covenants had expired and the neighborhood was not able to enforce the restriction.
That falls back on whoever created the covenants and manages them. Mumphery responded that your



256

Page 4
ZBOA Minutes
March 19t 2024

covenants are generally set up by your developer and its up to that developer to renew their restrictive
covenants by way of them running for ten or twenty years. If they establish a HOA, meet quarterly then
they could keep the covenants up to date and be able to enforce them.  If they want to enforce the
covenants they need to go inside the neighborhood and establish an HOA and then they will have the
ability to say what you can or cannot do. We as a county do not enforce covenants; we only enforce the
land development code and bring issues to the board for them to say yea or nay.

Partain asked who is responsible to advise new home owners of covenants. Mumphery replied that he
could not say who is responsible but usually if there is a set of covenants, the realtors usually give the
perspective owner a copy of the covenants.

Taylor said just so everybody understands, 90% of the front yard placement exceptions that the board
deals with are around the lake because the backyards are so different, the sizes are so different. That’s
why the zoning board is here. We're either going to grant or deny the request; somebody is going to be
happy and somebody is going to be mad no matter which way we go. its trying to find the balance that
best for the county and for the people involved.

Chase Lamb approached the podium. Mr. Lamb lives at 127 Landing Rd. and said that he honestly does
not have a problem with the building nor where he puts the building. He said that it is a good-looking
building and they are spending a bunch of money on their house, they’re doing numerous renovations all
the time. Lamb said that he is also the postmaster for Cordele, Crisp County. He said that one of their
neighbors put a letter in peoples mail boxes throughout the entire Landing Rd neighborhood, which they
probably did not know it is a felony to do such a thing. Lamb just wanted to provide a public service
announcement concerning that matter.

Taylor responded and said that he was glad he said that way. Everybody involved in this is good people.
And trying to find the right decision. We are all property owners here and trying to find that balance
between its my property I want to do what I want to do with it and what best for the people that live around
them is what were trying to temper with every decision. Thank you for your comments and thank you for
not putting people in jail.

Mr. Taylor asked if there were any further questions. There were none. Mr. Taylor, concluded the
public portion of the hearing. '

DISCUSION and VOTE:

Mr. Taylor asked if there were any further discussion by the board. JC Clark said that we have heard
from three people that are here today plus Mr. McPherson. Clark explained that McPherson is in a catch
22 situation where he can’t put it in the back or on the side. Everybody spoke well of how good the
architecture of the building is and how it conforms to the house. Clark said he was pleased with what he
has put out there even though it is in his front yard. Taylor asked McPherson how long the building was
going to be there. Did he have any long-term plans? McPherson said as long as he is living in the



]

257

Page S
ZBOA Minutes
March 19t 2024

house.

McPherson said that they were going to sell the house and move to Albany but changed their minds and
decided to stay out at the lake. He said that he does not have any plans to sell now or move. Taylor said

if we put a time limit on how long it can stay in your front yard would it hurt your feelings. McPherson
said if it’s at least five or ten years that would be fine and that it would not hurt his feelings. There were
no other comments.

Taylor asked if there was a motion. Clark said that he had a motion that if McPherson after five or ten
years could do something to put it in the backyard, he would make a motion for it to be approved. Taylor
said that he was going to have to ask Clark to rephrase his motion it couldn’t be 5 or ten years it needed

to be a defined time, 5, 6, 7, 8, or 10 years. Clark asked McPherson what would be the best time for
him.

McPherson said that he was sixty-six years old, I might be here for a short while and then gone you
know. McPherson said that he might still be here when he’s 75 or 101 but he promised that his house.is
going to be just as nice then as it is now. That’s all I can tell you; I can’t predict a date. Clark
responded that he makes a motion that 10 years would be good enough for him, so he makes the motion
that we approve for him to keep the storage building in the front yard for ten years. Partain said for 10
years is his understanding. Partain said that he just wanted to make sure that he understood Clark’s
motion. Clark asked Partain if he approved his motion. Partain said he just wanted to make sure he
understood that his motion was time limited and at the end of ten years he has to move the building.

Taylor said before you second it, let him read four things. Taylor read the standards or approval as
outlined in the Crisp County Land Development Code. After a finding of the facts, a Special Exception
Variance may be granted upon a finding that the relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment
to the public good or be injurious to the use and enjoyment of the environment or of other property in
the immediate vicinity nor diminish and impair property values within the surrounding neighborhood or
impair the purpose and intent of the Development Code.

Partain asked Clark if he would be willing to change his motion to “as long as he owns the house™?
Clark said no that he wanted fo stay with the ten years and that he would go with number three, it would
not diminish and impair property values within the surrounding neighborhood or impair the purpose and
intent of the Development Code. Taylor asked if we have a second? Partain seconded. Taylor said that
we have a motion and a second, all in favor say “I”, all responded with I. The motion carried
unanimously. At the end of ten years, Taylor told McPherson that his request was granted and that at
the end of ten years he would need to come back and ask for another variance.

JC Clark asked if McPhersons shed was within the set back limits. Taylor responded that opens another
can of worms. Taylor asked Jimmy Mumphery that when he makes the measurements, if there is a
setback problem then it needs to come back in front of the board. Do you agree? Mumphery responded
with yes. Taylor asked the board if they agree, the board agreed unanimously.



Page 6
ZBOA Minutes
March 19t 2024

NEW BUSINESS

Dunnavant updated the board on the meeting dates and templates that would be used for the Crisp
County Comprehensive Plan. Dunnavant told the board the Plan is a road map for County and City
leaders to use for development and Jand use.

OLD BUSINESS

None. Meeting was adjourned by Vice Chairman Taylor.

Mic e§ Dunnavant
Vice Chairman ecretarnylanmng Director

258



